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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council 
Town of Polkton, North Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements 

TELEPHONE (704) 694-5174 

FACSIMI LE (704) 694-6970 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, and each major fund of Town of Polkton, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Town' s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or en-or. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor 's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation of the financial statements. 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each 
major fund of Town of Polkton, North Carolina, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in 
financial position and cash flows, where appropriate, thereof and the respective budgetary 
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's 
Discussion and Analysis, the Local Governmental Employees ' Retirement System's Schedules of 
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Contributions, the Law Enforcement 
Officers' Special Separation Allowance's Schedules of Changes in Total Pension Liability and Total 
Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll, and the Other Postemployment Benefits' 
Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Town of Polkton, North Carolina. The 
individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and schedule of expenditures of 
federal and State awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part 
of the basic financial statements. 

The individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and schedule of expenditures 
of federal and State awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 



in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, based on our audit and the procedures performed as described above, the individual fund 
statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and schedule of expenditures of federal and State 
awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 
2, 2020, on our consideration of Town of Polkton's internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, and other matters. The purpose of the report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards m 
considering Town of Polkton' s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

% f;}J/:z111 ~· ~ {)/LC 
Wadesboro, North Carolina 
November 2, 2020 



Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of Town of Polkton, we offer readers of Town of Polkton ·s financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Town of Polkton fo r the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with 
additional information that we have furni shed in the Town's financia l statements, which follow this 
narrative. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Town of Polkton exceeded its liabil ities and 
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $5 ,100,398 (net position). 

• The government's total net position increased by $5,434 primarily due to increases in property 
taxes, utility charges for services, and investment earnings, as well as decreases in some 
departmental expenses. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, Town of Polkton 's governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $2,09 1,470 w ith a net decrease of $60,807 in fund balance. 
Approximately 77 percent of this tota l amount, or $ 1,604,289, is availab le for spending at the 
government's discretion (unassignedfimd balance). 

• At the end of the current fisca l year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 
$ 1,604,289 or 167 percent of total General Fund expenditures for the fi scal year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to Town of Polkton's basic 
financial statements . The T0vvn's basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) 
goverru11ent-w ide financial statements, 2) fu nd financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial 
statements (see Figure 1 ). The basic fi nancial statements present two different views of the Town 
through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements . fn addition to the basic 
financial statements, this report contains other supplemental info rmation that wil l enhance the reader's 
understanding of the financia l condition of Town of Polkton. 
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Required Components of Annual Financial Report 

Figure 1 
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The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financ ial statements are the Government-wide 
Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the Town's financial 
status. 

The next statements (Exhibits 3-1 through 8) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus 
on the activities of the individual parts of the Town' s government. These statements provide more detai l 
than the government-wide statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the 
governmental fund statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund 
statements. 

The next section of the basic financ ial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements 
explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. Following the notes is required 
supplementary information. This section contains funding info rmation about the Town's pension 
plans and postemployment benefits. Also after the notes, supplemental information is provided to 
show details about the Town's individual funds. Budgetary information required by the North Carolina 
General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements. 

I I 
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Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of 
the Town' s finances , s imilar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The 
government-w ide statements provide short and long-term information about the Town's financial status 
as a whole. 

The two government-w ide statements report the Town's net pos1t1on and how it has changed. Net 
position is the difference between the Town's total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is one way to gauge the Town ' s 
financial conditio n . 

The government-wide s tatements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities and 2) 
business-type activi ties . The governmental activ ities include most of the Town's basic services such as 
public safety, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes and State and federal 
grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activi ties are those that the Town charges 
customers to provide. These include the water and sewer services offered by Town of Polkton. 

The govenunent-wide financia l statements are Exhibits I and 2 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

T he fund financial statements (see Figure 1) provide a more detailed look at the Town's most s ignificant 
activities . A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Town of Polkton, like al l other governmental 
entities in North Caro lina, uses fund accounting to ensure and refl ect compliance (or non-compliance) 
with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the Town's budget ord inance. 
All of the funds of Town of Polkton can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and 
proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds - Governmental fund s are used to account for those functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-w ide fi nancial statements. Most of the Town's basic services 
are accounted for in govenm1ental funds. T hese funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into 
cash flo w in and out and what monies are left at year-end that wil l be available for spending in the next 
year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modffied accrual accounting 
which provides a short-term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements 
give the reader a deta il ed short-te rm v iew that helps him or her determine if there are more or less 
financial resources availab le to finance the Town's programs. The relationship between governmental 
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental 
funds is described in a reconci liation that is a part of the fund financia l statements. 

Town of Polkton adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The 
budget is a legally adopted document that inco rporates input from the ci tizens of the Town, the 
management of the Town, and the dec isions of the Board abo ut which se rvices to provide and how to 
pay for them. It also authorizes the Town to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these 

I l l 
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current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how 
well the Town complied w ith the budget ordinance and whether or not the To\.vn succeeded in provid ing 
the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the 
budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format , language, and classifications as 
the legal budget document. The statement shows four columns: l ) the original budget as adopted by the 
board; 2) the final budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources , charges to appropriations, 
and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and 
the actual resources and charges. 

Proprietary Funds - Town of Polkton has one kind of proprietary fund . Enterprise Funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. Town of Polkton uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer activity. These 
funds are the same as those functions show n in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net 
Position and the Statement of Activities . 

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a fu ll 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to 
the financial statements begin on page 12 of this report. 

Other Information - In addition to the basic financ ial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
includes certain required supplementary information concerning Town of Polkton' s progress in funding 
its ob ligation to provide pension benefits and postemployment benefits to its employees . Required 
supplementary information can be found beginning on page 40 of this report. 

Interdependence with Other Entities: The Town depends on financial resources flowing from, or 
assoc iated w ith , both the federa l government and the State of North Caro lina. Because of this 
dependency, the Town is subj ect to changes in spec ific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on 
modifications to federal and State laws and federa l and State appropriations. 

IV 
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

Town of Polkton's Net Position 
Figure 2 

Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

2020 20 19 2020 2019 2020 2019 -
Current and other assets $ 2, 179,542 $ 2,266,716 $ 1,271 ,973 $ 1, 157,838 $ 3,451,515 $ 3,424,554 

Cap ital assets 362,499 272,057 2,090,235 2,151 ,897 2,452,734 2,423,954 

Deferred out flows of resources 102,109 86,076 17 291 17,168 119,400 [03,244 

Total assets and deferred 

outflows of resources 2,644,150 2,624,849 3,379,499 3,326,903 6,023,649 5,951,752 

Current and other liabilities 35,226 60,362 79,789 72,922 115,015 133,284 

Long-term liabilities outstanding: 

Due within one year 4,445 2,396 4,445 2,396 

Due in more than one year 665,309 567,450 87,235 89,651 752,544 657,101 

Deferred inflows of resources 46,081 56 045 5,166 7,962 51,247 64,007 

Total liabilities and deferred 

inflows of resources 751,061 686,253 172,190 170,535 923.251 856 788 

Net position: 

Net investment in capital assets 340,335 267,263 2,090,235 2,151 ,897 2,430,570 2,419,160 

Restricted 4 12,181 544,295 412, 18 1 544,295 
Unrestricted I, 140,573 I, 127,038 I 11 7 074 1,004.47 1 2,257,647 2,131,509 

Total net position $ 1,893,089 $ 1,938,596 $ 3,207,309 $ J, 156,368 $ 5, 100,398 $ 5,094,964 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial 
condition. The assets and deferred outflows of Town of Polkton exceeded liabilities and deferred 
inflows by $5, 100,398 as of June 30, 2020. The Town's net position increased by $5,434 for the fi scal 
year ended June 30, 2020. However, the largest portion ( 47.7%) reflects the Town's net investment in 
capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment). Town of Polkton uses these capital 
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
Although Town of Polkton' s net investment in capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related 
debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of Town of Polkton's net position, 
$4 12,181 (8. 1%), represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. 
The remaining balance of $2,257,647 (44.2%) is unrestricted. 

Several particular aspects of the Town's financial operations positively influenced the total unrestricted 
governmental net position: 

• Property tax collections were consistent. 
• Investment earnings were increased due to investing idle funds with NCCMT. 
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Town of Polkton's Changes in Net Pos ition 
Figure 3 

Revenues: 

Program Revenu1..~s : 
Charges for saviccs $ 

Opera! ing gran1s am! co111 ribut ions 

Cap it al grants and contributions 
General Revenues: 

Propen y taxes 

Other ta~es and licenses 
Grants and co ntributions not restricted 
Investment earnings. unrestricted 
Miscellaneous . unrestricted 

Total Revenues 

fapcnses: 
Program E~venses : 

General gov~rnment 

Public safety 
Transportat ion 
Environmental protect ion 

C ulture and recreation 
Interest on long-tenn debt 
Water and sewer 

T owl E~venses 

Increase (decrease) in net 

pos it ion bclorc transfe rs 

Transfers 

Increase (decrease) in net posit ion 

Net Position, July I 

Gow rnnwn1:1 I 
Ac1 i,'il irs 

2020 2019 

-17.467 $ 48.956 
23.229 80.775 
60.77-1 10.300 

12-1.053 125. 186 
695.850 735.-181 

1-1.369 8,181 
12.798 180 

978.5-10 1.009.059 

193 .890 17 1.083 
300.665 290.72 1 
369,-10 1 226.097 
-18.92-1 -1-1.679 
21.185 23.071 

1.217 

935.282 755,651 

-13.258 253.-108 

(88 .765) (172250) 

(-15.507) 81. 158 

1.938.596 1,857.-138 

$ 

BusinCS.'\-Cypc 
.-\c1h·i1ics 

2020 2019 

275.5SS $ 292.770 

8.697 -1.2 10 

28-1.285 296.980 

322.109 422 .812 

322.109 -122.812 

(37.82-1) ( 125.832) 

88.765 172.250 

50.9-11 -16.-118 

3.156.368 3, I 09.950 

$ 

Tola l 

2020 20 19 

323.055 $ 3-1 1.726 

23.229 80.775 
60.77-1 I 0.300 

12-1 .053 125.IS6 
695.850 735.-18 I 

23.066 12.391 
12.798 180 

1.262.825 1.306.039 

193.890 171.083 

300.665 290.721 

369.-10 1 226 097 

-18.92-1 -1-1.679 

21. 185 23.071 

1.217 
322.109 422.812 

1.257.39 1 1.178-l(i3 

5.-13-1 127.576 

5.-1 3-1 127.576 

5.09-1.964 4.96 7.388 

N~t Posir ion. June 30 $ 1.893.089 $ 1.938.596 $ 3.207.309 S 3.156.368 $ 5.100.398 $ 5,094.96-1 

Governmental activities. Governmental act1v1t1es decreased the Town's net pos1t1on by $45,507, 
thereby not contributing to the total growth in the net position of Town of Polkton fo r the current year. 
A key element of th is is an increase in spending fo r transportation in an effort to uti lize avai lable Powell 
Bill funding and transferring $88 ,765 to the Water and Sewer Fund for its operations. 

Business-ty pe activities. Business-type activities increased Town of Polkton' s net position by $50,941 
large ly due to the transfer from the General Fund. 
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Financial Analysis of the Town's Funds 

As noted earlier, Town of Polkton uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requ irements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of Town of Polkton's governmental funds is to provide information 
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usab le resources. Such information is usefu l in 
assess ing Town of Polkton 's financ ing requ irements. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Town of Polkton. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
Town of Polkton's fund balance available in the General Fund was $ 1,963,666, while total fund balance 
reached $2,091 ,470. The Town currently has an avai lable fund balance of 204.6% of General Fund 
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 217.9% of the same amount. 

At June 30, 2020, the governmental funds of Town of Polkton reported a combined fund balance of 
$2,09 1,470 with a net decrease in fund balance of $60,807. 

General Fu nd Budgetary Highlights. During the fiscal year, the Town revised the budget on several 
occasions. Generally, budget amendments fal l into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to 
adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is 
avai lable; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as 
federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services. 

Revenues were slightl y more than the budgeted amounts primarily due to conservative budgeting o f 
local option sales taxes. Expenditures were held in check to comply with budgetary requirements. 

Proprietary Funds. Town of Polkton's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the Water and Sewer 
Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $ 1, 11 7,074. The total change in net pos ition for the 
Water and Sewer Fund was an increase of $50,941. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capi tal assets. Town of Polkton 's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30, 2020, totals $2,452,734 (net of accumulated depreciation) . These assets include 
bui ldings, streets, land, machinery and equipment, park facilities, vehicles, and the ·water and sewer 
system. 

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the fol lowing: 
• Purchase of a 20 19 Dodge Durango for the police department 
• Installment purchase of 3 APX 6000 portable radios for the police department 
• Purchase of 3 Watchguard body cameras for the police department 
• Po lice in-car camera and radar equipment acquired through the Governors Highway Safety 

Program 
• Purchase of a John Deere 5075E tractor and loader for the streets department 
• Purchase of a water test meter 
• Instal lation of water and sewer meters 
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Land $ 

Construction in progress 
Land improvements 
Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Vehicles and maintenance equipment 
Equipment and furnis hings 
Water and sewer system 

Total $ 

Town of Polkton's Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

Figure 4 
Governmental 

Act i,i ties 

2020 2019 

7,830 $ 7,830 

10,040 14,742 
107,213 113,962 
66,239 72, 192 

106,1 95 23,717 
64,982 39,614 

362,499 s 272,057 

$ 

$ 

Busi ness-type 
Activities 

2020 

81,232 s 
40,000 

50,292 
8,591 

1,910,120 

2,090,235 s 

2019 

81,232 
40,000 

54,328 
6,492 

1,969,845 

2, 151,897 

Tota l 

2020 2019 

$ 89,062 s 89,062 

40,000 40,000 
10,040 14,742 

107,213 113,962 

116,531 126,520 
11 4,786 30,209 

64,982 39,614 

1,910.120 1,969,845 

$ 2,452,734 s 2,423,954 

Additional information on the Town' s capital assets can be found in Note 3 of the Basic Financial 
Statements. 

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2020, Town of Polkton had no bonded debt. 

Town of Polkton's Outstanding Debt 
Figure 5 

Gove rnmental 
Activities 

2020 2019 

Direct borrowing installment purchases $ 22, 164 $ 4,794 

Town of Polkton's Outstanding Debt 

$ 

Business-type 
Acti vities 

2020 2019 

$ 

Total 

2020 2019 

$ 22,164 $ 4,794 

Town of Polkton's total debt increased by $17,370 during the current fiscal year. The increase was due 
to the issuance of a direct borrowing installment purchase contract of $18,568 for the purchase of law 
enforcement equipment. 

North Carolina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can 
issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's 
boundaries. The legal debt margin for Town of Polkton is $3,699,255. 

Additional information regarding Town of Polkton's long-term debt can be found in Note 3 of this 
report. 
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

There are currently no known plans for significant growth within the Town. 

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

Governmental Activities: Changes were made to the budget for purchasing new vehicles for the police 
department, streets department, and water/sewer department. The FY 2020-2021 budget was decreased 
somewhat to account for expected decreases in local option sales tax due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Ad valorem tax revenue was also decreased due to delays in collection of motor vehicle taxes also due to 
the current pandemic. 

Business-type Activities: The Town plans to maintain water and sewer services at the current level. 
Meter purchases will only be to replace existing radio read meters as needed. The billing rate structure 
for water was changed for FY 2020-2021. The rater per 1000 gallons used for water and sewer was 
increased for FY 2020-2021. The tax rate increased for FY 2020-2021 by three percent making it 30 
cents per $100 valuation. Water and sewer revenues were decreased in the FY 2020-2021 budget to 
account for anticipated declines in collections due to N01ih Carolina Executive Orders No. 124 and 142 
delaying the collection of utility bills and instituting payment arrangements extending into 2020-2021. 

Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Town's finances for those with an interest in this 
area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional 
information should be directed to the Finance Officer, Town of Polkton, PO Box 99, Polkton, NC 
28135. 

IX 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
ST A TEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2020 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables: 

Taxes receivab le 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Accrued interest receivable 
Due from other governments 

Inventories 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equiva lents 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
Land and other nondepreciable assets 
Other capital assets (net) 

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabi lities 
Accrued interest payable 
Due to other governments 
Payable from restricted assets 
Long-term liabi lities: 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Stabi lization by State statute 
Streets - Powell Bill 

Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Governmenta l Business-type 
Activities Activities 

$1,7 13,298 $ 1, 180,0 18 

44,763 
6,0 16 24,876 
9,300 

121 ,787 1,474 
28,444 

284,378 37, 16 1 

2,179,542 1,27 1,973 

7,830 12 1,232 
354,669 1,969,003 

362,499 2,090,235 

2,542,041 3,362,208 

102, 109 17,29 1 

33,904 1,005 
1,2 17 

105 4 1,623 
37, 16 1 

4,445 
665 ,309 87,235 

704,980 167,024 

46,081 5,166 

340,335 2,090,235 

127,803 
284,378 

1, 140,573 1, 117,074 

$ 1,893,089 $ 3,207,309 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this s tatement. 
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Exhibit 1 

Total 

$ 2,893,3 16 

44,763 
30,892 

9,300 
123,26 1 
28,444 

321,539 

3,451,5 15 

129,062 
2,323,672 

2,452,734 

5,904,249 

119,400 

34,909 
1,2 17 

41,728 
37, 16 1 

4,445 
752,544 

872,004 

5 1,247 

2,430,570 

127,803 
284,378 

2,257,647 

$ 5, 100,398 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Functions/Programs: 
Governmental activ ities 

General government 
Public safety 
Transportation 
Environmental protection 
Culture and recreation 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Water and sewer 

Program Revenues 

Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and 

Exeenses Services Contributions Contributions 
--·- · -

$ l 93,890 $ - $ - $ 
300,665 2,095 
369,401 23,229 

48,924 45,372 
21,185 

1,2 17 

935,282 47,467 23,229 

322,109 275 ,588 

$ 1,257,391 $ 323,055 $ 23,229 $ 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 
Other taxes and licenses 

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 
Investment earnings, unrestricted 
Miscellaneous, unrestricted 

10,000 
50,774 

60,774 

60,774 

Total general revenues not including transfers 

Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning 

Net position, ending 

The notes to the financia l statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 2 

Net {Exeense} Revenue and Changes in Net Posit ion 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activit ies Total 

$ (193,890) $ - $ (193,890) 
(288,570) (288,570) 
(295,398) (295,398) 

(3,552) (3,552) 
(21, 185) - (2 1,185) 

(1,217) {1,217) 
(803,812) (803,8 12) 

{46,521) {46,521) 

(803,8 12) {46,52 1) {850,333) 

124,053 124,053 
695,850 695,850 

14,369 8,697 23,066 
12,798 12,798 

847,070 8,697 855,767 

(88,765) 88,765 

758,305 97,462 855,767 

(45,507) 50,941 5,434 

1,938,596 3, 156,368 5,094,964 

$ 1,893,089 $ 3,207,309 $ 5, I 00,398 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2020 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Taxes receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other governments 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to other governments 

TOT AL ASSETS 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Property taxes receivable 
Prepaid taxes 

TOT AL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted: 

Stabilization by State statute 
Streets - Powell Bill 

Assigned: 
Subsequent year's expenditures 

Unassigned 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

TOT AL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 3-1 

General 
Fund 

$ 1,713,298 
284,378 

44,763 
6,016 

121 ,787 

$ 2,170,242 

$ 33,904 
105 

34,009 

44,763 

44,763 

127,803 
284,378 

75,000 
1,604,289 

2,091,470 

$ 2,170,242 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 3-2 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE 

SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2020 

Fund balances - Total governmental funds (Exhibit 3-1) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position 
(Exhibit 1) are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB are not 
reported in the funds. 

Other long-term assets (accrued interest receivable on taxes) are not 
available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are 
inflows of resources in the funds. 

Liabilities for earned revenues considered deferred inflows of resources 
in fund statements. 

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB are not 
reported in the funds. 

Long-term liabilities used in governmental activities are not financial 
uses and, therefore, are not reported in the funds: 

Installment purchase payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Net pension liability (LGERS) 
Total pension liability (LEO) 
Total OPEB liability 

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit 1) 

$ 2,091,470 

362,499 

102, l 09 

9,300 

44,763 

(46,081) 

(22,164) 
(1,217) 

(15,522) 
(105,845) 

(18,581) 
(507,642) 

$ 1,893,089 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 
Restricted intergovernmental 
Permits and fees 
Sales and services 
Investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Transportation 
Environmental protection 
Culture and recreation 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers to other funds 
Sale of capital assets 
Loan proceeds 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, beginning 

FUND BALANCE, ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 4-1 

General 
Fund 

$ 124,067 
692,944 

76,909 
1,327 

45,372 
14,369 
7,136 

962,124 

185,688 
329,217 
379,175 

48,924 
15,732 

1, 198 

959,934 

2,190 

(88,765) 
7,200 

18,568 

(62,997) 

(60,807) 

2,152,277 

$ 2,091,470 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit 4-1) 

Exhibit 4-2 

$ (60,807) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit 2) 
are different because: 

Goverrunental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement of 
activities, however, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by 
which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period: 

Capital outlay expenditures 
Net book value of disposed capital assets not recorded in the fund statements 
Trade-in allowance on disposed capital asset 
Depreciation 

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not included 
on the statement of activities. 

Benefit payments paid and administrative expenses for the LEOSSA are not 
included on the statement of activities. 

OPEB benefit payments and administrative expenses incurred in the current 
fiscal year are not included on the statement of activities. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide cunent financial 
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds: 

Change in accrued interest receivable on taxes 
Change in unavailable revenue for tax revenues 
Amount of donated assets 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to govern­
mental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes 
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has 
any effect on net position. This amount is the net effect of these differences in 
the treatment of long-term debt and related items: 

New long-term debt issued 
Principal payments on long-term debt 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds: 

Change in accrued interest payable 
Change in compensated absences payable 
Pension expense 
OPEB plan expense 

Total change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit 2) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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126,230 
(6,770) 
6,000 

(45,018) 

24,735 

2,007 

12,386 

(2,054) 
2,040 

10,000 

(18,568) 
1,198 

(1 ,2 17) 
4,556 

(54,805) 
(45,420) 

$ (45,507) 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit 5 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Variance 
with Final 

Origina l Fina l Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative} 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes $ 115,000 $ 115,000 $ 124,067 $ 9,067 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 684,400 684,400 692,944 8,544 
Restricted intergovernmental 82,300 83, 171 76,909 (6,262) 
Permits and fees 900 900 1,327 427 
Sales and services 40,500 40,500 45,372 4,872 
Investment earnings 5,5 14 5,514 14,3 69 8,855 
Miscellaneous 970 4,196 7, 136 2,940 

TOTAL REVENUES 929,584 933 ,681 962, 124 28 ,443 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 178,225 191,425 185,688 5,737 
Public safety 328,575 353,716 329,217 24,499 
Transportation 295,980 389,955 379,175 10,780 
Environmental protection 48,370 48,370 48,924 (554) 
Cu lture and recreat ion 20,500 21,025 15,732 5,293 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement l , 198 1,198 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES 87 1,650 1,005,689 959,934 45,755 

REVENUESOVER(UNDER)EXPENDITURES 57,934 (72,008) 2, 190 74, 198 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers to other funds (88,765) (88,765) (88,765) 
Sale of capital assets 3,674 7,200 3,526 
Loan proceeds 18,568 18,568 

TOT AL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) (88,765) (66,523) (62,997) 3,526 

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES UNDER 
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (30,831) (138,53 1) (60,807) 77,724 

APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 30,831 138,531 (1 38,531) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ - $ (60,807) $ (60,807) 

FUND BALANCE, beginning 2,152,277 

FUND BALANCE, ending $ 2,091,470 

The notes to the financia l statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
June 30, 2020 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (net) 
Due from other governments 
Inventories 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

TOT AL CURRENT ASSETS 

NONCURRENT ASSETS 
Capital assets: 

Land and other nondepreciable assets 
Other capital assets (net) 

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 

TOT AL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to other governments 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets: 

Customer deposits 

TOT AL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
Compensated absences payable 
Net pension liability 
Total OPEB liability 

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 6 

Water and 
Sewer Fund 

$ 1,180,018 
24,876 

1,474 
28,444 
37,161 

1,271 ,973 

121 ,232 
1,969,003 

2,090,235 

3,362,208 

17,291 

1,005 
41 ,623 

37,161 

79,789 

5,318 
25,5 12 
56,405 

87,235 

167,024 

5,166 

2,090,235 
1,117,074 

$ 3,207,309 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
ST A TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

OPERA TING REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Other operating revenues 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Office expenses 
Utilities 
Supplies 
Tests, permits, and fees 
Water purchases 
Sewer charges 
Repairs and maintenance 
Insurance 
Depreciation 
Mobile phones 
Public service vehicle 
Miscellaneous 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

OPERA TING LOSS 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
Investment earnings 

LOSS BEFORE TRANSFERS 

TRANSFERS 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, beginning 

NET POSITION, ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 7 

Water and 
Sewer Fund 

$ 268,733 
6,855 

275,588 

81,208 
2,506 

885 
8,212 
4,535 

42,203 
80,895 
27,043 

2,482 
67,532 

644 
2,982 

982 

322,109 

(46,521) 

8,697 

(37,824) 

88,765 

50,941 

3,156,368 

$ 3,207,309 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid for goods and services 
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services 
Customer deposits received 
Customer deposits returned/applied 
Other operating cash receipts 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Transfers from other funds 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition of capital assets 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Investment earnings 

NET INCREASE IN CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ending 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Unrestricted 
Restricted 
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Exhibit 8 
Page 1 of 2 

Water and 
Sewer Fund 

$ 276,548 
(170,518) 

(84,522) 
10,950 
(9,060) 
6,855 

30,253 

88,765 

(5,870) 

8,697 

121 ,845 

1,095,334 

$ 1,217,179 

$ 1,180,018 
37,161 

$ 1,217,179 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH 
USED BY OPERA TING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

provided by operating activities : 
Depreciation 
(Increase) decrease in: 

Accounts receivable (net) 
Due from other governments 
Inventories 
Deferred outflows of resources - pensions 
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to other governments 
Customer deposits 
Compensated absences payable 
Net pension liability 
Total OPEB liability 
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions 
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit 8 
Page 2 of 2 

Water and 
Sewer Fund 

$ (46,521) 

67,532 

7,815 
222 

(327) 
2,243 

(2,366) 

(1 ,187) 
6,164 
1,890 

4,666 
(7,082) 

(260) 
(2,536) 

$ 30,253 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of Town of Polkton conform to generally accepted accounting principles as 
applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 

A. REPORTING ENTITY 

Town of Polkton is a municipal corporation which is governed by an elected mayor and a five­
member council. 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display 
information about the primary government and its component units, if any. These statements include 
the financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the 
double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and 
business-type activities of the Town. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are 
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the different business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town's governmental 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been 
made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) 
fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as 
general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Town's 
funds. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental and proprietary - are presented. 
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each 
displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and 
reported as non-major funds, when applicable. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each 
party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies, 
result from non-exchange transactions. Other nonoperating revenues are ancillary activities such as 
investment earnings. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

The Town reports the following major governmental fund: 

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. The General Fund 
accounts for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. 
The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, State grants, and various other taxes and licenses. 
The primary expenditures are for general government, public safety, and street maintenance. 

The Town reports the following major enterprise fund: 

Water and Sewer Fund. This fund is used to account for the Town's water and sewer operations. 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained during the 
year using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus . 
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis 
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities 
are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in 
which the Town gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in 
exchange, include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property 
taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and 
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all ta~es . 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating 
revenues of the Town enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The Town 
also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of 
connecting new customers to the water and sewer system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds 
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. 
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are repo1ied using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when 
the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, 
claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the 
extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are 
reported as other financing sources. 

The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except 
for property taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue because the amount is 
not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor vehicles are 
materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the 
cu1Tent year. Also, as of September 1, 2013, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and 
collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this 
change in the law, the State of North Carolina is responsible for billing and collecting the property 
taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts. Property 
taxes are due when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which 
they are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013, and for 
limited registration plates are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by 
deferred inflows of resources. 

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the beer and wine tax, collected and held 
by the State at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue. Sales taxes are considered 
a shared revenue for Town of Polkton because the tax is levied by Anson County and then remitted 
to and distributed by the State. Most intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not 
susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. All taxes, 
including those dedicated for specific purposes are reported as general revenues rather than program 
revenues. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures 
have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been satisfied. Under the terms of grant 
agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement 
grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, 
there is both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It is the 
Town's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, fo llowed by 
categorical block grants, and then general revenues. 

D. BUDGETARY DATA 

The Town's budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual 
budget is adopted for the General Fund and the Enterprise Fund. All annual appropriations lapse at 
the fiscal year-end. Project ordinances are adopted as needed. All budgets are prepared using the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the 
functional level for all annually budgeted funds and at the object level for the multi-year funds. All 
amendments must be approved by the governing board. The budget ordinance must be adopted by 
July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time 
until the annual ordinance can be adopted. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLo,vs OF RESOURCES, AND 
FUND EQUITY 

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

All deposits of the Town are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as 
required by State law [G.S. 159-31]. The Town may designate, as an official depository, any bank or 
savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the Town may 
establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and 
certificates of deposit. 

State law [G.S. l 59-30(c)J authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the United States or 
obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States, obligations of the 
State of North Carolina, bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority, 
obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies, certain high quality issues of commercial 
paper and bankers' acceptances, and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). The 
NCCMT - Government Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, is measured at 
fair value. Because the NCCMT Government Portfolio has a weighted average maturity ofless than 
90 days, it is presented as an investment with a maturity of less than 6 months. 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The Town pools money from several funds to faci litate disbursement and investment and to 
maximize investment income and considers all cash and investments to be cash and cash equivalents. 

RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Customer deposits held by the Town are restricted to the service for which the deposit was collected. 
Powell Bill funds are also classified as restricted cash because they can be expended only for the 
purposes outlined in G.S. 136-41.1 through 136-41.4. 

AD V ALO REM TAXES RECEIVABLE 

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-l 3(a)], the Town levies ad valorem taxes 
on property other than motor vehicles on July 1 sr, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due 
on September 1st (lien date); however, interest does not accrue until the fo llowing January 61

h. These 
taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2019. 

ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for 
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the receivables written off in prior years, 
as well as the receivables at year end deemed to be uncollectible. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

INVENTORIES 

Inventories are maintained for the Water and Sewer Fund supplies. The inventories are valued at 
cost. The costs of these inventories are expensed when consumed rather than when purchased. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated 
capital assets received prior to June 16, 2015, are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of 
donation. Donated capital assets received after June 15, 2015, are recorded at acquisition value. The 
minimum capitalization limit is $1,000. General infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2003, 
consist of the road network and have not been capitalized. The cost of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. 

Capital assets of the Town are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Land improvements 
Infrastructure 
Buildings 
Vehicles and maintenance equipment 
Equipment and furnishings 
Water and sewer system 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

15 years 
30 years 

10 - 39 years 
5 -40 years 
5 - 15 years 

25 - 50 years 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The Town has several items that meet this 
criterion - contributions made to the OPEB and pension plans in the current fiscal year and OPEB 
and pension related deferrals. In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes 
repo1i a separate section for defened inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The Town has several items that meet the 
criterion for this category - prepaid taxes (when applicable), property taxes receivable, and OPEB 
and pension related deferrals . 

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. 
In the fund financial statements for governmental fund types, the face amount of debt issued is 
reported as an other financing source. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

The vacation policy of the Town provides for the accumulation of up to thirty (30) days earned 
vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the Town's government-wide 
and proprietary fund financial statements, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and 
the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned. 

The Town's sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick 
leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in 
the determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the Town has no 
obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been 
made. 

NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES 

Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements is classified as net 
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net position represents 
constraints on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law tlu·ough State statute. 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications 
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

Nonspendable Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. The Town does not have any nonspendable fund balance. 

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific 
purposes externally imposed by creditors or imposed by law. 

Restricted for Stabilization by State statute - North Carolina G.S. 159-8 prohibits units of 
government from budgeting or spending a portion of their fund balance. This is one of several 
statutes enacted by the North Carolina legislature in the 1930's designed to improve and maintain 
the fiscal health oflocal government units. Restricted by State statute (RSS) is calculated at the 
end of each fiscal year for all annually budgeted funds. The calculation in G.S. 159-8(a) 
provides a formula for determining what portion of fund balance is available for appropriation. 
The amount of fund balance not available for appropriation is what is known as "restricted by 
State statute". Appropriated fund balance in any fund shall not exceed the sum of cash and 
investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances, and deferred revenues arising/ram cash 
receipts, as those figures stand at the close of the fiscal year next preceding the budget year. Per 
GASB guidance, RSS is considered a resource upon which a restriction is "imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation". RSS is reduced by inventories and 
prepaids as they are class ified as nonspendable. RSS is included as a component of restricted 
fund balance on the Balance Sheet and restricted net position on the Statement of Net Position. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

Restricted for streets - Powell Bill - portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source 
for street construction and maintenance expenditures. This amount represents the balance of the 
total unexpended Powell Bill funds. 

Committed Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes 
imposed by majority vote by quorum of the Town's governing board (highest level of decision­
making authority). The governing body can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the 
fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in 
place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the 
limitation. The Town does not have any committed fund balance this year. 

Assigned Fund Balance -portion of fund balance that the Town intends to use for specific purposes. 

Subsequent year's expenditures -portion offund balance that is appropriated in the next year's 
budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. The governing body approves 
the appropriation. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - po1iion of fund balance that has not been restricted , committed, or 
assigned to specific purposes or other funds. 

For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance 
first, followed in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly, unassigned 
fund balance. The Town has not adopted a minimum fund balance policy, but follows the State 
Treasurer's guidance. 

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OPEB PLANS 

The Town participates in two cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plans that are 
administered by the State - the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS) and 
the Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance (LEOSSA) (collectively, the "state­
administered defined benefit pension plans")- and one other postemployment benefit plan (OPEB) ­
the Health Care Plan (the HC Plan). For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net positions of the state-administered defined benefit 
pension plans and additions to/deductions from the state-administered defined benefit pension plans' 
fiduc iary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are repotied by the state­
administered defined benefit pension plans. For this purpose, plan member contributions are 
recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Town of Polkton's employer 
contributions are recognized when due and Town of Polkton has a legal requirement to provide the 
contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
terms of the state-administered defined benefit pension plans. For purposes of measuring the total 
OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows ofresources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of the HC Plan and additions to/deductions from the HC 
Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the HC 
Plan. For this purpose, the HC Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments for all plans are reported at fair value. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

NOTE 2-STE\iVARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the expenditures made in the Town's General Fund 
exceeded the authorized appropriations made by the governing board for fire protection and 
sanitation. The over-budget amounts resulted from year-end accruals. Management and the Board 
will more closely review the budget reports to ensure compliance in future years. 

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. ASSETS 

DEPOSITS 

All the deposits of the Town are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under 
the Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the federal depository insurance coverage level are 
collateralized with securities held by the Town' s agents in the Town's name. Under the Pooling 
Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by 
the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a 
fiduciary capacity for the Town, these deposits are considered to be held by the Town's agent in the 
Town's name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for 
non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest bearing deposits. 
Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled 
collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with 
the Town or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral 
pledged for the Town under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collateralization, and 
this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina 
enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits 
under the Pooling Method. The Town has no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for 
deposits, but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum capitalization for all 
Pooling Method financial institutions and to monitor them for compliance. The Town complies with 
the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are 
properly secured. 

At June 30, 2020, the Town' s deposits had a carrying amount of $2,598,629 and a bank balance of 
$2,613,100. Of the bank balance, $504,928 was covered by federal depository insurance, and the 
remainder was covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method. At June 30, 2020, the Town's 
bank balances exceeded federally insured limits by $2,108, 172. All deposits of the Town are insured 
or co llateralized under the Pooling Method. At June 30, 2020, the Town's petty cash fund totaled 
$175. 

INVESTMENTS 

At June 30, 2020, Town of Polkton had $6 16,051 invested with the North Carolina Capital 
Management Trust's Government Portfolio which carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and 
Poor's. The Town has no formal policy regarding credit risk, but has internal management 
procedures that limit the Town's investments to the provisions of G.S. 159-30. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

At June 30, 2020, the Town's investment balances were as follows: 

North Carolina Capital Management 
Trust Government Po1tfo lio 

Reported Fair 
Value Value 

$616,051 $616,051 

RECEIVABLES - ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 

The receivables show in Exhibit 1 are net of the following allowances for doubtful accounts: 

General Fund - Taxes receivable 
Water and Sewer Fund 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

$ 

12,200 

$ 12,200 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balances Increases Decreases 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 7,830 $ - $ -

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Land improvements 74,870 (200) 
Infrastructure 202,485 
Buildings 131,038 
Vehicles and maintenance equipment 295,554 100,628 (44,214) 
Equipment and furnishings 130,812 4 1,602 (1 1,420) 

834,759 142,230 (55,834) 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Land improvements 60,128 4,702 (200) 
Infrastructure 88,523 6,749 
Buildings 58,846 5,953 
Vehicles and maintenance equipment 27 1,837 16,658 (42,722) 
Equipment and furnishings 91,198 10,956 (6, 142) 

570,532 45,018 (49,064) 

264,227 

Governmental activities 
capital assets, net $ 272,057 
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Ending 
Balances 

$ 7,830 

74,670 
202,485 
131 ,038 
35 1,968 
160,994 

921,155 

64,630 
95,272 
64,799 

245,773 
96,012 

566,486 

354,669 

$ 362,499 



TO\-VN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental departments as follows: 

General government 
Public safety 
Transportation 
Culture and recreation 

Beginning 

$ 7,437 
19,460 
12,668 
5,453 

$ 45,018 

Balances Increases Decreases 
Ending 

Balances 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

L~d $ 81,232 $ 
40,000 Construction in progress 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 
Vehicles and maintenance equipment 
Water and sewer system 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 
Vehicles and maintenance equipment 
Water and sewer system 

Business-type activities 
capital assets, net 

121 ,232 

121 ,104 
48,948 

3,12 1,068 

3,291,120 

66,776 
42,456 

1,151,223 

1,260,455 

2,030,665 

$2,151,897 

- $ 

3,220 
2,650 

5,870 

4,036 
1,121 

62,375 

67,532 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2020, was $67,532. 
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- $ 81,232 
40,000 

121,232 

121,104 
52,168 

3,123,718 

3,296,990 

70,8 12 
43,577 

1,2 13,598 

1,327,987 

1,969,003 

$2,090,235 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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B. LIABILITIES 

PENSION PLAN AND POSTEMPLOYMENT OBLIGATIONS 

Local Governmental Emplovees' Retirement System 

Plan Description: Town of Polkton is a participating employer in the statewide Local Governmental 
Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension 
plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS membership is comprised of general 
employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating local governmental entities. 
A1ticle 3 of G. S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the 
North Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of 
Trustees, which consists of 13 members - nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the 
State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State 
Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. The Local Governmental Employees' Retirement 
System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Repott (CAFR) for the State of North 
Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information 
for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail 
Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling (919) 981-5454, or at 
www.osc.nc.gov. 

Benefits Provided: LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are 
determined as 1.85% of the member's average final compensation times the member' s years of 
creditable service. A member's average final compensation is calculated as the average of a 
member's four highest consecutive years of compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire with 
full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of 
creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. Plan members are eligible to 
retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at age 60 with 
five years ofcreditable service. Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of members 
who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who have either 
completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age or have completed five years of service 
and have reached age 60. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor's Alternate 
Benefit for life or a return of the member's contributions. The plan does not provide for automatic 
post-retirement benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan. 

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with 
five years of creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. LEO 
plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of 
creditable service as an officer. Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of LEO 
members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who also 
have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age, or have completed 15 years of 
service as a LEO and have reached age 50, or have completed five years of creditable service as a 
LEO and have reached age 55, or have completed 15 years of creditable service as a LEO if killed in 
the line of duty. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor' s Alternate Benefit 
for life or a return of the member' s contributions. 
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Contributions: Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be 
amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly. Town of Polkton employees are required to 
contribute 6% of their compensation. Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set 
annually by the LGERS Board of Trustees. Town of Polkton's contractually required contribution 
rate for the year ended June 30, 2020, was 9.70% of compensation for law enforcement officers and 
9 .11 % for general employees, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with 
employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the 
year. Contributions to the pension plan from Town of Polkton were $29,925 for the year ended June 
30, 2020. 

Rejimds of Contributions: Town employees who have terminated service as a contributing member 
of LGERS may file an application for a refund of their contributions. By State law, refunds to 
members with at least five years of service include 4% interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting 
period after service termination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of a refund payment 
cancels the individual's right to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by LGERS. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions: 

At June 30, 2020, the Town reported a liability of $131,357 for its propmiionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019. The total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
December 31, 2018. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of 
June 30, 2019, utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The Town's 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Town's long-term share of 
future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the 
pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020, the 
Town's proportion was 0.00481% (measured as of June 30, 20 19), which was an increase of 
0.0003% from its proportion as of June 30, 2019 (measured as of June 30, 2018). 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town recognized pension expense of $61,820. At June 30, 
2020, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows ofresources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

expenence $ 22,493 
21,409 Changes of assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
Town contributions and proportionate 
share of contributions 

Town's contributions subsequent to the 

3,204 

4,3 13 

measurement date 29 925 
Total $ 81.344 ~===~='==~ 
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Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 

1,462 

$ 1,462 
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$29,925 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date w ill be recognized as a decrease of the net pension 
liability in the year ending June 30, 202 1. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows 
of resources related to pens ions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2021 $ 24,238 
2022 8,404 
2023 13,025 
2024 4,290 
2025 
Thereafter 

$ 42!257 

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability in the December 31, 2018, actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

3.0 percent 
3.50 to 8.10 percent, including inflation and 

productivity factor 
7. 00 percent, net of pension plan investment 

expense, including inflation 

The plan actuary cunently uses mortality rates based on the RP-2014 Total Data Set for Healthy 
Annuitants Mortality Table that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e., general, law enforcement 
officer) and health status (i.e., disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on 
published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The 
healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements . 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 20 18, valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study as of December 31 , 2014. 

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not 
included in the measurement. 

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review 
of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, 
and histo rical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current 
yields across the U.S . Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and 
interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity return 
projections are established through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return 
projections. Other asset categories and strategies' return projections reflect the forego ing and 
historical data analysis. These projections are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return fo r each major asset class as of June 30, 2019, are summarized in the fo llowing table: 
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Asset Class Target Allocation 
Fixed Income 29.0% 
Global Equity 42.0% 
Real Estate 8.0% 
Alternatives 8.0% 
Credit 7.0% 
Inflation Protection 6.0% 

Total 100.0% 

Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

1.4% 
5.3% 
4.3% 
8.9% 
6.0% 
4.0% 

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for 
the 2018 asset, liability, and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, 
including LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are 
aritlunetic annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by 
multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.00%. All rates of return and 
inflation are annualized. 

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be 
made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension 
plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension 
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Town's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the 
Discount Rate: The following presents the Town's prop01tionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) calculated using the discount rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what the Town's proportionate 
share of the net pension asset or net pension liabi lity would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is one percentage point lower (6.00 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.00 percent) 
than the current rate: 

1% Discount 1% 
Decrease Rate Increase 
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%) 

Town's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability ( asset) $ 300,438 $ 131,357 $ ( 9,183) 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for 
the State of North Carolina. 
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Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance 

Plan Description: Town of Polkton administers a public employee retirement system (the Separation 
Allowance), a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the 
Town's qualified sworn law enforcement officers under the age of 62 who have completed at least 30 
years of creditable service or have attained 55 years of age and have completed five or more years of 
creditable service. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the 
base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. 
The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may 
be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions to the N011h Carolina General Assembly. 

All full-time law enforcement officers of the Town are covered by the Separation Allowance. At 
December 31, 2018, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of three active plan 
members. 

A separate report was not issued for the plan. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Basis of Accounting: The Town has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go 
basis. Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
terms of the plan. 

The Separation Allowance has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria which are 
outlined in GASB Statement No. 73. 

Actuarial Assumptions: The entry age normal actuarial cost method was used in the December 31, 
2018, valuation. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2018, actuarial valuation was 
determined using the fo llowing actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 

Discount rate 

2.5 percent 
3.50 to 7.35 percent, including inflation and 

productivity factor 
3 .26 percent 

The discount rate is based on the yield of the S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate Index 
as of December 31, 2018. 

Mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Mortality tables with adjustments for mortality 
improvements based on Scale AA. 
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Contributions: The Town is required by Article 12D ofG.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement 
benefits and has chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned on a pay as you 
go basis through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget. There were no 
contributions made by employees. The Town's obligation to contribute to this plan is established 
and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. Administration costs of the 
Separation Allowance are financed through investment earnings. The Town paid $-0- as benefits 
came due for the reporting period. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions: 

At June 30, 2020, the Town reported a total pension liability of $18,581. The total pension liability 
was measured as of December 31, 2019, based on a December 31, 2018, actuarial valuation. The 
total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of December 31, 2019, 
utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. For the year ended June 30, 
2020, the Town recognized pension expense of $2,817. 

Differences between expected and actual 
expenence 

Changes of assumptions 
Town benefit payments and plan 

administrative expenses incurred subsequent 
to the measurement date 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 

$ 

600 
1,081 

326 
2,007 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 

$ 

1,879 
623 

2,502 

$-0- paid as benefits came due and $326 of administrative expenses incurred subsequent to the 
measurement date are reported as deferred outflows of resources and will be recognized as a decrease 
of the total pension liability in the year ending June 30, 202 1. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as 
fo llows: 

Year Ending 
June 30 

202 1 $ (256) 
2022 (256) 
2023 (256) 
2024 (25 1) 
2025 29 
Thereafter 169 

$ (82 1) 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

Sensitivity of the Tovtin 's Total Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following 
presents the Town's total pension liability calculated using the discount rate of3.26 percent, as well 
as what the Town's total pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
one percentage point lower (2.26 percent) or one percentage point higher ( 4.26 percent) than the 
current rate: 

1% Discount 1% 
Decrease Rate Increase 
(2.26%) (3.26%) (4.26%) 

Total pension liability $ 20,139 $ 18,581 $ 17,108 

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability - Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation 
Allowance: 

Balance at December 31, 2018 
Service cost 
Interest on the total pension liability 
Change of benefit terms 
Differences between expected and actuarial experience 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 
Benefit payments 
Other changes 

Balance at December 31, 2019 

$ 14,418 
2,552 

525 

517 
569 

$ 18,58 1 

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age and health status (i.e., disabled and healthy). 
The current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant 
portions of the U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future 
mortality improvements. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the five year period ended December 31, 2014. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

Total Expense, Liabilities, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

Following is information related to the proportionate share and pension expense for all pension 
plans: 

LGERS LEOSSA Total 

Pension expense $ 61,820 $ 2,817 $64,637 

Pension liability 131,357 18,581 149,938 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability ( asset) 0.00481% n/a 

Deferred outflows of resources: 
Differences between expected and actual experience 22,493 600 23,093 
Changes of assumptions 21,409 1,081 22,490 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on plan investments 3,204 3,204 
Changes in proportion and differences between Town 

contributions and proprotionate share of contributions 4,313 4,313 
Benefit payments and administrative expenses incurred 

subsequent to the measurement date 29,925 326 30,251 

81,344 2,007 83,35 1 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Differences between expected and actual experience 1,879 1,879 
Changes of assumptions 623 623 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between Town 

contributions and proprotionate share of contributions 1,462 1,462 

1,462 2,502 3,964 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers and General Emplovees 

Plan Description: The Town contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a 
defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of 
Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the Town. 
Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the 
North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement 
Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North 
Carolina. The State's CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal 
Revenue Code Section 401 (k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law 
Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 
1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, No1ih Carolina 27699-1410 or by calling (919) 981 -5454. 

Funding Policy: Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the Town to contribute each month an 
amount equal to five percent of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested 
immediately. The law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan. 

The Town has elected to make the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan available to general 
employees. The Town contributes four percent of each general participant's salary, and the 
employees may make voluntary contributions. All amounts contributed are vested immediately. 

The Town made contributions of $14,261 for the reporting year. No amounts were forfeited. 

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT - HEAL TH CARE BENEFITS 

Plan Description: Under the terms of a Town resolution, the Town administers a single-employer, 
defined benefit Health Care Plan (the HC Plan). The Town Council has the authority to establish 
and amend the benefit terms and financing requirements. No assets are accumulated in a trust that 
meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. 

Bene.fits Provided: The HC Plan provides postemployment health care benefits to retirees of the 
Town, provided they participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees' Retirement 
System (System) and have at least 20 years of creditable service with the Town. The Town pays the 
full cost of coverage for these benefits through private insurers. Health care, prescription drug, 
dental , vision benefits, and life insurance are provided in the Town' s group health insurance plan to 
eligible retirees for their lifetime. The retiree may continue dependent coverage (and pay the full 
cost of this coverage) if enrolled in dependent coverage at the time of retirement. Dependent 
coverage terminates upon the retiree 's death. The Town is cuITently paying the dependent vision and 
dental coverage for one retiree. This subsidy is not expected to continue for any future retirees. The 
Town Counci l may amend the benefit provisions. A separate rep01i was not issued for the HC Plan. 
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TO\VN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

Membership of the HC Plan consisted of the fo llowing at June 30, 2019, the date of the latest 
actuarial valuation: 

Retirees receiving benefits 

General 
Employees 

1 

Law 
Enforcement 

Officers 
1 

Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet 
receiving benefits 

Active plan members 4 4 
Total 5 5 

Total OPEB Liability: The Town's total OPEB liability of $564,047 was measured as of June 30, 
2019, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2019, actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Discount rate 
Healthcare cost trend rates 

2.50 percent 
3.50 percent, average, including inflation 
3.50 percent 
Pre-Medicare - 7.00% for 2019 decreasing to an ultimate 
rate of 4.50% by 2026 
Medicare - 5. 00% for 20 19 decreasing to an ultimate rate 
of 4.50% by 2021 

The discount rate is based on the yield of the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-year Municipal 
Bond Index as of the measurement date. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability: 

Balance at July 1, 2018 
Changes for the year: 

Service cost 
Interest 
Changes of benefit terms 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 
Benefit payments 

Net changes 

Balance at June 30, 20 19 

$ 507,896 

20,394 
19,564 

27,378 
(1 ,170) 

(10,0 15) 
56 151 

$ 564l047 

Changes in assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.89% to 3 .50%. 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Total Data Set for Healthy Annuitants Mortality Table. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019, valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014. 

Sensitivity of the Total OP EB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following presents the 
total OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town's total OPEB liability would be ifit were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.50 percent) or one percentage 
point higher ( 4.50 percent) than the current discount rate: 

1% Discount 1% 
Decrease Rate Increase 
(2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%) 

Total OPEB liability $ 662,789 $ 564,047 $485,499 

Sensitivity of the Total OP EB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: The 
following presents the total OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town' s total OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point 
lower or one percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Total OPEB liability 

1% 
Decrease 

$483,512 

Current 
Rate 

$ 564,047 

1% 
Increase 

$ 667,757 

OP EB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB: For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town recognized OPEB expense of$33,436. At June 
30, 2020, the Town reported deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources related 
to OPEB from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual 

Defe1Ted Outflows 
of Resources 

expenence $ 23,663 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 
Benefit payments and administrative expenses 

incuned subsequent to the measurement date 12 3 86 

Total ~$ = ====3~6~.0~4e,f,9 

$ 

Defened Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 

945 
46,338 

47,283 

$12,386 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from benefit payments 
made and administrative expenses incurred subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized 
as a decrease of the total OPEB liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
Thereafter 

OTHER EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

$ (8,283) 
(8 ,283) 
(8,283) 
(4,841) 
1,198 
4 872 

$ (23,620) 

The Town has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for 
members of the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a 
multiple employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The 
beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership 
in the System or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least 
one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death 
benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest 
months salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the employee's death, but the benefit may not 
exceed $50,000 or be less than $25,000. Because all death benefit payments are made from the 
Death Benefit Plan and not by the Town, the Town does not determine the number of eligible 
participants. The Town has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The 
contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the postemployment benefit 
amount and the other benefit amount. Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly 
payroll, based upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates are set for employees not 
engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. The Town considers these 
contributions to be immaterial. 

For the fi scal year ended June 30, 2020, the Town made contributions to the State for death benefits 
of $487. The Town' s required contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for 
law enforcement officers represented 0.16% and 0.14% of covered payroll, respectively. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred outflows of resources at year-end are comprised of the following: 

Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year (LGERS) 
Benefit payments and administrative expenses incurred subsequent 

to the measurement date (LEOSSA) 
Benefit payments and administrative expenses for OPEB incurred 

subsequent to the measurement date 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between employer 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

Deferred inflows of resources at year-end are comprised of the following: 

General Fund 

Prepaid taxes (General Fund) 
Taxes receivable, less penalties (General Fund) 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Changes in proportion and differences between employer 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 
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$ 

$ 

Balance 
Sheet 

-
44,763 

44,763 

$ 29,925 

326 

12,386 
46,756 
22,490 

3,204 

4,3 13 

$ 119,400 

Statement of 
Net Position 

$ 

2,824 
46,961 

1,462 

$ 51,247 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town obtains general 
liability coverage of $5 million, auto liability coverage of $5 million per incident, and workers' 
compensation coverage up to statutory limits. The Town carries commercial insurance for all risks 
of loss. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled 
claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

The Town participates in the National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP). The Town does not own any 
property that is within an area that is designated as a Flood Hazard Area. As additional Flood 
Hazard Areas are designated within the limits of the Town, the need to carry flood insurance through 
the NFIP will be reconsidered. 

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the Town's employees that have access to $100 or more at any 
given time of the Town's funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The 
finance officer is bonded for $50,000. Public officials and the remaining employees that have access 
to funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $50,000. 

COMMITMENTS 

In September 20 13, the Town entered into a water tank management contract. The annual fee is 
$35,869 the first 3 contract years and $12,04 1 for years 4 through 6. In year 7 and each third 
anniversary, the annual fee is to be adjusted to reflect the current cost of service. The adjustment is 
not to exceed 5% per annum. Any unpaid balance of the first three annual fees is payable should the 
Town cancel the contract in the first three years. The contract is for an indefinite period of time. 
The Town paid and expensed $ 13,366 in the year ended June 30, 2020. 

CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS 

At June 30, 2020, the Town had no litigation pending. 

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

Installment Purchases Payable 

Installment purchases payable consisted of the following direct borrowings at June 30, 2020: 

On June 5, 20 18, the Town entered into a direct borrowing 
installment purchase contract with a vendor to finance the 
purchase of equipment for law enforcement. The financing 
contract requires $770 for the first year and $1,198 annually 
for years two through five at 0% interest. The contract is 
secured by the equipment and serviced by the General Fund. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

On July 9, 2019, the Town entered into a direct borrowing 
installment purchase contract with a bank to finance the 
purchase of equipment for law enforcement. The financing 
contract requires five annual payments of $4,495 including 
interest at 6.522%. The contract is secured by the equipment 
and serviced by the General Fund. 

TOTAL INSTALLMENT PURCHASES PAYABLE 

18,568 

$ 22,164 

In the event of default on either of the above loans, the vendor and/or bank may exercise any one or 
more of the following remedies: (a) declare the unpaid principal balance and any accrued interest 
immediately due and payable, (b) proceed with appropriate remedies available under the Uniform 
Commercial Code and North Carolina law with respect to security interest in any property, and (c) 
avail itself to any available remedies under the loan agreement(s). 

(Left blank intentionally) 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

Annual debt service payments of the installment purchase as of June 30, 2020, are as follows: 

Year Ending 

June 30. 

2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 

CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Governmental Activities 

Principal Interest 

$ 4,445 $ 1,248 
4,664 1,030 
4,896 797 
3,947 548 
4,212 283 

----'--

$ 22, 164 $ 3,906 

The following is a summary of changes in the Town's long-term obligations for the year ended June 
30, 2020: 

Balance 
July 1, 2019 Increases 

Governmental activities: 
Direct borrowing installment 

purchases $ 4,794 $ 18,568 
Compensated absences 20,078 
Net pension liability (LGERS) 86,147 19,698 
Total pension liability (LEO) 14,418 4,163 
Total OPEB liability 444,409 63,233 

$ 569,846 $ 105,662 

Business-type activities: 
Compensated absences $ 5,318 $ -
Net pension liability (LGERS) 20,846 4,666 
Total OPEB liability 63,487 

$ 89,651 $ 4,666 

Due 
Balance Within 

Decreases June 30, 2020 One Year 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1,198 $ 
4,556 

5,754 $ 

- $ 

7,082 

7,082 $ 

22, 164 $ 4,445 
15,522 

105,845 
18,581 

507,642 

669,754 $ 4,445 

5,318 $ 

25,5 12 
56,405 

87,235 =$ === 

Compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the General and Water and Sewer Funds 
and are accounted for on a LIFO basis, assuming employees are taking leave time as it is earned. 

At June 30, 2020, Town of Polkton had a legal debt margin of $3,699,255. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

OPERA TING LEASES 

The Town leases office equipment and garbage containers under various noncancellable operating 
leases. The annual minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2020, including the most recent renewal, 
are as fo llows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2021 $ 43,200 
2022 43,200 
2023 43,200 
2024 35.422 

$ 165,022 

Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2020, was $47,260. 

C. INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY 

Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2020, consist of the fo llowing: 

General Fund 
To Water and Sewer Fund 

Water and Sewer Fund 
From General Fund 

From To 

$ $ 88,765 

88,765 

$ 88,765 $ 88 ,765 

Transfers are used to move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs that the government 
must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts 
providing matching funds for various grant programs. The Town also transfers a portion of the local 
option sales tax revenue from the General Fund to the Water and Sewer Fund each year to help with 
operating costs. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020 

NOTE 4 - JOINT VENTURES 

Rocky River Rural Planning Organization 

The Town participates in a joint venture, Rocky River Planning Organization (RPO), with 3 counties 
and 13 other municipalities to work cooperatively with each other and the N011h Carolina 
Department of Transportation to enhance transportation planning opportunities for rural areas in the 
region. Rocky River RPO is the only RPO in the State not housed in a Council of Governments. 
The RPO's fi scal agent is the County of Stanly. None of the participating governments have any 
equity interest in the RPO, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 
30, 2020. In accordance with the agreement between the participating governments and the RPO, the 
Town paid $866 to the RPO during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, for membership dues. 
Complete financial statements for the RPO may be obtained from the RPO's office at 1000 North 
First Street, Suite 17; Albemarle, North Carolina 28001. 

North Carolina Rural Water Association 

The Town also participates in a joint venture, North Carolina Rural Water Association (NCRWA), 
with other municipal and county water systems and related businesses in North Carolina to help 
attain the highest standards in drinking water and wastewater service. NCR WA is governed by a 
volunteer board of directors from the association's membership. None of the participating 
governments or businesses have any equity interest in NCR WA, so no equity interest has been 
reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2020. In accordance with the agreement between the 
Town and NCRWA, the Town paid $280 to NCRWA during the year ended June 30, 2020, for 
membership dues based upon the Town's water connections. Complete financial statements for 
NCR WA can be obtained from NCRWA's office at PO Box 540, Welcome, North Carolina 27374. 

NOTE 5 - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES 

FEDERAL AND STATE ASSISTED PROGRAMS 

The Town has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these 
grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under 
the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies. 
Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in 
the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant monies. 

NOTE 6 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

In March 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) classified the COVID-19 outbreak as a 
pandemic. As of the date of this report, the full impact of the COVID-19 pandemic continues to 
evolve. Management is monitoring the situation on an on-going basis. An estimate of the future 
financial impact, if any, is not practicable at this time. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 

This section contains additional information required by generally accepted accounting principles: 

• Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabi lity (Asset) for Local Governmenta l 
Employees' Retirement System 

• Schedule of Contributions for Local Governmental Employees' Reti rement System 

• Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liabili ty fo r the Law Enforcement Officers' Special 
Separation Allowance 

• Schedule of Total Pension Liabil ity as a Percentage of Covered Payro ll for the Law 
Enforcement Officers ' Special Separation Allowance 

• Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liabi lity and Related Ratios 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION 

LIABILITY (ASSET) 
Last Seven Fiscal Years* 

2020 

Town's proportion of the net pension liability (asset)(%) 0.00481% 

Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)($) $ 131,357 

Town's covered payroll $319,404 

Town's proportion of the net pension liability 
(asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll 4 1. 13% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liabi lity** 90.86% 

20 19 20 18 

0.00451% 0.00483% 

$ 106,993 $ 73,789 

$300,063 $284,98 1 

35.66% 25.89% 

9 1.63% 94. 18% 

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fi scal year ended June 30. 

** This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the LGERS plan. 
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20 17 2016 2015 2014 

0.00428% 0.00476% 0.00334% 0.00310% 

$ 90,836 $ 21,363 $ (1 9,698) $ 37,367 

$283,772 $259,994 $199,335 $ 171,861 

32.01% 8.22% 9.88% 21.74% 

91.47% 98.09% 102.64% 94.35% 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 
Last Seven Fiscal Years 

2020 

Contractually requi red contribution $ 29,925 

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution ___ 29,925 

Contribution deficiency ( excess) $ -

Town's covered-employee payro ll $ 320,329 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.34% 

- 4 1 -

2019 2018 

$ 26,07 1 $ 23,650 

26,07L _ _J3 ,65Q 

$ - $ -

$319,404 $ 300,063 

8.16% 7.88% 

2017 20 16 2015 2014 
--

$ 2 1,69 1 $ 19,788 $ 18,709 $ 14,228 

21,691 ~19,7_8§ __ ) 81722-
--

14,228 

$ - $ - $ - $ 

$ 284,981 $ 283,772 $ 259,994 $ 199,335 

7 .61% 6.97% 7.20% 7.14% 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY 
June 30, 2020 

2020 2019 2018 

Beginning balance $ 14,418 $ 12,180 $ 12,004 
Service cost 2,552 2,261 1,920 
Interest on the total pension liability 525 385 463 
Changes of benefit terms 
Differences between expected and actual experience 

in the measurement of the total pension liability 517 212 (3,214) 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 569 (620) 1,007 
Benefit payments 
Other changes 

Ending balance of the total pension liability $ 18,581 $ 14,418 $ 12,180 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ended 
December 31. 
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2017 

$ l 0, 137 
1,852 

362 

(347) 

$ 12,004 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER'S SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY AS A PERCENTAGE OF 

COVERED PAYROLL 
June 30, 2020 

2020 2019 2018 

Total pension liability $ 18,58 1 $ 14,418 $ 12,180 $ 

2017 

12,004 

Covered payroll $ 136,795 $1 12,601 $ 107,849 $ 110,572 

Total pension liability as a percentage of 
covered payroll 13.58% 12.80% 11.29% 10.86% 

Notes to the schedules: 

2016 

$ 10,137 

$ 110,572 

9.17% 

The Town of Polkton has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of 
GASB Statement No. 73 to pay related benefits nor does the plan provide pay related benefits. 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
June 30, 2020 

2020 2019 2018 

Service cost $ 20,394 $ 21,649 $ 24,533 
Interest 19,564 17,86 1 15,649 
Changes of benefit terms 
Differences between expected and actual experience 27,378 (1,009) (451) 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (1,170) (27,521) (48,446) 
Benefit payments (10,015) (9,486) {9,486) 

Net change in total OPEB liability 56, 151 1,494 (18,201 ) 
Total OPEB liability - beginning 507,896 506,402 524,603 

Total OPEB liability - ending $ 564,047 $ 507,896 $ 506,402 

Covered payroll $ 319,404 $ 300,063 $ 289,677 

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 176.59% 169.26% 174.82% 

Notes to schedule: 

Changes of assumptions: Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in 
the discount rate of each period. The following are the discount rates used in each period: 
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Fiscal Year Rate 

2020 
2019 
2018 
2017 

3.50% 
3.89% 
3.56% 
3.01% 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Final 
Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes 

Taxes $ 115,000 $ 121 ,999 
Penalties and interest 2,068 

Total 11 5,000 124,067 

Unrestricted intergovernmental 
Local option sales tax 630,000 636,867 
Telecommunications sales tax 8,200 7,604 
Utilities sales tax 32,000 35,696 
Piped natural gas sales tax 1 
Video franchise fee 1,200 1,383 
Beer and wine tax 13 ,000 11 ,393 

Total 684,400 692,944 

Restricted intergovernmental 
Solid waste disposal tax 2,000 2,010 
Powell Bill allocation 80,000 74,003 
Controlled substance tax 1,171 896 

Total 83,171 76,909 

Permits and fees 900 1,327 

Sales and services 

Refuse co llection 40,500 45,372 

Investment earnings 5,5 14 14,369 

Miscellaneous 4,196 7, 136 

TOTAL REVENUES 933,681 962, 124 
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Exhibit A-1 
Page 1 of 3 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ 6,999 
2,068 

9,067 

6,867 
(596) 

3,696 
1 

183 
(1,607) 

8,544 

10 
(5,997) 

(275) 

(6,262) 

427 

4,872 

8,855 

2,940 

28,443 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Final 
Budget Actual 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Governing body 
Salaries and employee benefits 13,538 
Professional services 15,000 
Other operating expenditures 3,848 

Total 33,745 32,386 

Finance 

Salaries and employee benefits 81,394 
Other operating expenditures 41 ,448 

Total 125,680 122,842 

Public buildings 

Operating expenditures 16,4 11 
Capital outlay 11,700 

Total 29,600 28,111 

Elections 

Operating expenditures 2,400 2,349 

Total general government 191,425 185,688 

Public safety 
Police 

Salaries and employee benefits 20 1,049 
Other operating expenditures 39,402 
Capital outlay 63,756 

Total 327,3 16 304,207 

Fire 
Operating expenditures 25,000 25,0 10 

Inspections 
Operating expenditures 1,400 

Total public safety 353,7 16 329,217 
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Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

1,359 

2,838 

1,489 

51 

5,737 

23,109 

(10) 

1,400 

24,499 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Transportation 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Other operating expenditures 
Capital outlay 

Total transportation 

Environmental protection 
Sanitation 

Contracted services 
Other operating expenditures 

Culture and recreation 
Operating expenditures 

Debt service 
Principal retirement 

Total sanitation 

Final 
Budget 

389,955 

48,370 

21,025 

1,198 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,005,689 

Actual 

145,033 
183,368 
50,774 

379,175 

46,261 
2,663 

48,924 

15,732 

1,198 

959,934 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (72,008) 2,190 
--~ -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers to Water and Sewer Fund (8 8,765) (88,765) 
Sale of capital assets 3,674 7,200 
Loan proceeds 18,568 18,568 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES (USES) (66,523) (62,997) 

REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES UNDER 

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (138,53 1) (60,807) 

APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 138,53 1 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (60,807) 

FUND BALANCE, beginning 2,152,277 

FUND BALANCE, ending $ 2,09 1,470 
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Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

I 0,780 

(554) 

5,293 

45,755 

74,198 

3,526 

3,526 

77,724 

(138,53 1) 

$ (60,807) 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit B-1 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES- BUDGET AND Page 1 of 2 

ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)- WATER AND SEWER FUND 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Variance 
Final Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) 
REVENUES 

Operating revenues: 
Water sales $ 119,908 $ 118, 140 $ (1,768) 
Sewer charges 139,892 150,593 10,701 

Total charges for services 259,800 268,733 8,933 

Other operating revenues 4,000 6,855 2,855 

Total operating revenues 263,800 275,588 11,788 

Nonoperating revenues: 
Investment earnings 2,615 8,697 6,082 

TOTAL REVENUES 266,415 284,285 17,870 

EXPENDITURES 
Administration and operations: 

Salaries and employee benefits 86,543 
Office expenses 2,506 
Utilities 885 
Supplies 8,2 12 
Tests, permits, and fees 4,535 
Repairs and maintenance 27,043 
Insurance 2,482 
Mobile phones 644 
Public service vehicle 2,982 
Miscellaneous 982 

Total 140,720 136,814 3,906 

Water purchases 60,000 42,203 17,797 

Sewer charges 148,368 80,895 67,473 

Capital outlay 6,092 5,870 222 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES 355, 180 265,782 89,398 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND 

ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) - WATER AND SEWER FUND 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Final 
Budget 

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES (88,765) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers from General Fund 88,765 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 

RECONCILIATION FROM BUDGETARY BASIS 
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL) TO FULL ACCRUAL: 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

RECONCILING ITEMS: 
Capital outlay 
Depreciation 
Increase in deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 
Decrease in deferred inflows of resources - OPEB 
Decrease in OPEB liability 
Decrease in deferred outflows of resources - pensions 
Increase in net pension liability 
Decrease in deferred inflows of resources - pensions 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (EXHIBIT 7) 
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-

Actual 

18,503 

88,765 

$ 107,268 

$ 107,268 

5,870 
(67,532) 

2,366 
2,536 
7,082 

(2,243) 
(4,666) 

260 

$ 50,941 

Exhibit B-1 
Page 2 of 2 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

107,268 

$ 107,268 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF AD V ALO REM TAXES RECEIVABLE 
June 30, 2020 

Uncollected 
Balance 

Fiscal Year June 30, 2019 

2019-2020 $ -
2018-2019 9,488 
20 17-2018 5,794 
2016-2017 5,123 
2015-20 16 4,148 
2014-2015 4,134 
2013-2014 4,022 
2012-2013 3,845 
2011 -2012 2,532 
2010-20 11 2, 140 
2009-2010 1,497 

$ 42,723 

Reconcilement w ith revenues: 

Ad valorem taxes - General Fund 

Reconcil ing items: 
Collection of taxes previously written off 
Taxes written off 
Other adjustments 
Interest collected 
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Additions 

$ 125,598 

$ 125,598 

Collections 
and Credits 

$ 116,842 
1,994 

528 
542 
259 
504 
636 
495 

57 
204 

1,497 

$ 123 ,558 

Exhibit C-1 

Uncollected 
Balance 

June 30. 2020 

$ 8,756 
7,494 
5,266 
4,581 
3,889 
3,630 
3,386 
3,350 
2,475 
1,936 

$ 44,763 

$ 124,067 

$ 

1,497 
62 

(2,068) 

123,558 



TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
ANALYSIS OF CURRENT TAX LEVY - TOWN-WIDE LEVY 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Town-wide 

Property Amount 
Valuation Rate of Levy 

Original levy: 
Property taxed at current 

year's rate $ 46,517,734 0.27 $ 125,598 

Penalties and adjustments 

Total 46,517,734 125,598 

Discoveries: 
Current and prior year taxes 0.27 

Releases 

Total property valuation $ 46,5 17,734 

Net levy 125,598 

Unpaid (by taxpayer) taxes at June 30, 2020 (8,756) 

Current year's taxes collected $ 116,842 

Current levy collection percentage 2lQ3% 
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Exhibit C-2 

Total Levy 

Property 
Excluding 

Registered Registered 
Motor Motor 

Vehicles Vehicles 

$ 109,101 $ 16,497 

109,101 16,497 

109,10 1 16,497 

(8,756) 

$ 100,345 $ 16,497 

21.21% } QQ QQOLQ 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council 
Town of Polkton, North Carolina 

We have audited, in accordance w ith auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of Town of Polkton, North Carolina, as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2020, and the re lated notes to the fin ancial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Town's bas ic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 2, 2020. 

Interna l Control Over Financial Reportin g 
In planning and pe rforming our audit, we cons idered Town of Polkton 's internal control over fin ancial 
reporting (interna l control) as a bas is for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the c ircumstances 
for the purpose of ex pressing our opinions on the financia l statements, but not for the purpose of express ing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Town of Polkton ' s interna l control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing the ir assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a de fic iency, or combination of defi cienc ies, in 
interna l control such that the re is a reasonable possibility that a materi al misstatement of the entity 's financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely bas is . A significant deficiency is a 
defic iency, or a combination of deficienc ies, in interna l control that is less severe than a materia l weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of the inte rnal control was for the limited purposed descri bed in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not des igned to identify all defic ienc ies in interna l control that might be material weaknesses 
or s ignificant defic ienc ies and therefore , material weaknesses and significant defic iencies may ex ist that were 
not identified. We consider the defic iency described be low, however, to be a material weakness. 

Segregation of Duties: 
In an organizatio n such as Town of Polkton with a limited number of personnel for ce1tain functions, there are 
inherent 1 imitations o f the effectiveness of ce1tain controls due to the lack of segregation of duties among the 
Town personne l. We, therefore, recommend the Town separate duties as much as poss ible and provide 
alte rnative controls, inc luding involvement of the Town Council with oversight and approvals, where feasible. 
The Town agrees with this finding and plans to a lleviate the effects of this noted weakness where feas ible and 
cost effective. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town of Polkton's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective 
of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results ofour tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Town of Polkton ' s Response to Findings 
Town of Polkton's response to the finding identified in our audit is described above. The Town's response 
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and accordingly, 
we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of This Report 
The purpose of this repo1i is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

f)f IJd;n It~ -/J/J.C, 
November 2, 2020 
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TOWN OF POLKTON, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND ST ATE AW ARDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020 

State/ Grant Funds Expended 

Grantor/Pass-Through 
Grantor/Program Title 

State Grants: 

Cash assistance: 

NC Dept. of Transportation: 
Powell Bill 

Total assistance 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

Pass-through Federal (Direct 
Grantor's & Pass-through) State Local 

Expenditures Number Expenditures Expenditures 

$ - $ ----- 198,490 $ -----

- $ 
===== 
$ 198,490 ~$==== 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards: 

Note 1: Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards (SEFSA) includes the federal and 
State grant activity of Town of Polkton under the programs of the federal government and the State of 
North Carolina for the year ended June 30, 2020. Because the SEFSA presents only a selected portion of 
the operations of Town of Polkton, it is not intended to , and does not, present the financial position, 
changes in net position, or cash flows of Town of Polkton. 

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported in the SEFSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized fo llowing the cost principles contained in 0MB Uniform Guidance, wherein 
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
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